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Committee work 
Committee asks that someone go through the amendment for them. Senator Lyson says 
he would like to read the amendment before discussing. They will come back to this bill 
later. 
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Senator Berry moves a do pass as amended on the bill 
Senator Sitte seconded 

Vote - 5 yes, 2 no 

Senator Berry will carry 



Revised 
Bill/Resolution No.: SB 2368 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

0210412013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
. .  

t d d t l  levels and   e un er curren aw. 
2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $0 $0 $0 
Expenditures $0 $0 $0 
Appropriations $0 $0 $0 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

$0 $0 
$0 $0 
$0 $0 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties $0 $0 
Cities $0 $0 
School Districts $0 $0 
Townships $0 $0 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

This bill p rohibits abortions, except for medical emergencies, at the probable post fertilization age of 20 or more 
weeks. The physician shall perform the abortion in a manner to provide the best opportunity for the unborn child to 
survive. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Sections 2, 3, 4 and 6 could potentially have a fiscal impact. If this bill is passed and legally challenged and the 
challenging party prevails in a lawsuit, the state would need to reimburse the party for attorney's fees and costs. At 
this time, the Office of Attorney General estimates the general fund cost for this purpose could be $300,000, which 
represents costs and attorney's fees that could be awarded to the challenging party if they prevail, as well as Office 
of Attorney General expenses in defending the bill (deposition costs, t ravel costs, expert witness fees, etc.). 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

Not applicable 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

Not applicable 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

Not applicable 

Name: Kathy Roll 

Agency: Office of Attorney General 

Telephone: 701-328-3622 

Date Prepared: 02/08/201 3  
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2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 
House Human Services Committee 

Fort Union Room, State Capitol 

SB 2368 
March 1 3, 201 3 

Job 1 9843 

0 Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for  of bill/resolution: 

Relating to limitations on and penalties for performing an abortion. 

Minutes: Testimony 1,2,3,4,5,6 

Chairman Weisz: Opened the hearing on SB 2368. 

David A. Prentice: A cell biologist working for a think tank in Washington, DC testified in 
support of the bill. (See Testimony # 1 ) 

Anna Higgins: 5: 1 8  Director of Center for Human Dignity at the Family Research Council 
testified in support of the bill. (See Testimony #2) 

Rep. Mooney: 1 0:00 Is it a fetus or child "in your opinion"? 

Higgins: It is my opinion that it is a child. 

Rep. Mooney: But the medical terminology is still fetus, correct? 

Higgins: Yes, but I disagree. 

Paul Maloney: Director of Right to Life stands in support of this bill. 

Beth Brown: Delivering the testimony of Janne Myrdal. (See Testimony #3) 

Christopher Dobson: 1 2:45 Director of ND Catholic Conference testified in support of the 
bill. (See Testimony #4) 1 4:00 There was a mistake in the amendments that were put into 
the bill. 

Rep. Porter: 1 5:00 How do we put the number of abortion bills we past together? 

Dobson: A good question and I don't have an answer to that. 

Chairman Weisz: I had the same question. You had different dates on the different bills. 
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Dobson: This has to be a question that the attorney general will have to answer and how 
to enforce it. 

Chairman Weisz: Which one should be the final? 

Dobson: I don't know what the answer is at this time. 

Hannah Hersch: 18:09 Testified in support of the bill. (See Testimony #5) 

John Boustead: 21:10 Supported the bill. (See Testimony #6) 

Rep. Oversen: If you want us to make legislative decision on a religious belief, should it 
be all religious beliefs, why just one? 

Boustead: Our constitution has been framed with the idea of God and we have a creator. 
Christianity and the Holy Bible was the law of faith and religion in the land at the time. 

Rep. Mooney: We accept many other religions and they have a right to those their own 
belief, is that not correct? 

Boustead: You have to go back to the original intent of the writers of the Constitution. 

Handed in testimony by Janelle Moos in opposition to SB 2368. (See Testimony #7) 
Handed in testimony by Maria Wanchic in support of SB 2368. (See Testimony #8) 

Chairman Weisz: Closed hearing. 
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Rep. Fehr: Is it part of this or the whole amendment you don't like, Rep. Laning? 

Rep. Lani ng: I'm concerned of the health of the woman and the education should not be 
restricted. 

Rep. Si lbernagel: Item 3 does specify that unless an abortion is necessary to prevent the 
death of the woman, I would view that as an exemption from counseling in those cases. 

Rep. Mooney: Does that negate the fiscal note? 

Chairman Weisz: The fiscal note was initially zero. 

Rep. Mooney: In regards to the death of a woman, I've had two close calls with 
pregnancies and I wouldn't want my doctor to first go consult with legal counsel to find out 
whether or not he was performing an appropriate procedure. 

Chairman Weisz: We are just talking about state funds being used. It wouldn't have 
anything to do with your communication with your doctor. 

Rep. Kiefert: The only education they are addressing is Section 3a. 

Rep. Oversen: I will be voting against this bill. 
· 

Chairman Weisz: Number 3 says you can't fund. 

VOICE VOTE: MOTION CARRIED. 

Rep. Porter: During the testimony it was brought to our attention that there was an 
amendment that was required and that would be the following: Page 1, Lines 9-11 through 
the word sick to remove overstrike. Page 1, Line 11 starting with the underlined language 
to remove from this section and move it to Page 4, Line 28 in Section 3. 

Rep. Porter: I move the amendment. 

Vice-Chair Hofstad: Second. 

Rep. Oversen: Looking at the part that we are removing the overstrike from, the second 
sentence. Do we always put into century code what we believe the state's tradition is? 

Rep. Weisz: No, we don't always. 

VOICE VOTE: MOTION CARRIED. 

Rep. Oversen: I have a question about the first amendment we passed. We are now 
inserting the language institution under the control of the state board of higher education. 
That is completely new to this section? She was told that was correct? How does this 
affect research? 
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Chairman Weisz: Under 1 and 2 it seems to define that the funds can't be used by any 
person or private agency which provides or encourages abortions. I don't see where it is 
that they can use the funds for research. 

Rep. Oversen: Thinking back to testimony on one of the previous bills when we had a 
mother who had twin to twin transfusion complications, if we are looking at this in that 
matter in that her doctor may very well have said to save the life of one of the twins, she 
may have to abort the other, that doctor would then be promoting the idea of abortion to 
save a life. Then we couldn't be providing funding to a hospital that employs that 
physician? 

Rep. Porter: I think Rep. Oversen is reading too far into it. 

Chairman Weisz: Section 1 refers to family planning. 

Rep. Oversen: Unless the abortion is necessary to prevent the death of a woman, no 
funds of the state may be used to pay for or provide financial assistance to an organization 
performing, inducing, referring for, or counseling in favor of, abortions. 

Rep. Porter: The funds that this amendment is addressing has nothing to do with 
healthcare facilities or physicians. It only has to do with higher education. Higher ed. 
circumvented the legislature and took the funds any way. 

Rep. Mooney: Am I incorrect that UNO is classified as a teaching hospital? 

Chairman Weisz: It isn't a hospital. They are a medical school. 

Rep. Oversen: Section 3 says no funds at the state or any agency, county, municipality, 
school district, and no federal funds may be used to contract with the . . .  It is both state and 
federal. They are not separated with what they are applying to. 

Chairman Weisz: There is because of the comma, and a and b are broken down after the 
comma for and no federal funds passing through the state may be used to pay for or 
contract with. 

Rep. Porter: The key here is a lot of that language is existing state law except for the 
contracting part. It just is clarifying because of the_ by the higher ed. 

Rep. Looysen: I move a Do pass as amended on this bill. 

Rep. Kiefert: Second. 

Rep. Muscha: I have a real problem with this because I view myself as being very pro life. 
To me it really muddies the water, and it makes it more difficult for me to go home and 
explain why I vote against something. I have a real problem too with the education 
because as a parent and grandparent, if you don't teach your children the truth of things 
and then help them see both sides, how can they make good decisions for themselves? 
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Maybe what I read was totally on the whole NDSU issue, but if I remember right a lot of it 
was directed for "at risk" young people. 

Rep. Kiefert: As far as education, it is talking about not using funds to pay for the 
performance or promoting the performance of an abortion. 

Rep. Oversen: The grant was for NDSU to contract with planned parenthood to provide 
education to "at risk" young women and maybe men about prevention of unplanned 
pregnancies. 

Rep. Kiefert: They are going to have a one sided view of it. They are the ones providing 
the abortion so I have a hard time understanding that one point of view of it. 

Rep. Oversen: It is evidence based practices showing known to prevent unplanned 
pregnancies, not referring for counseling in favor of abortions. 

Rep. Damschen: This language doesn't really talk about anything but what has been 
stated by several people here on both sides of the issue. 

Chairman Weisz: The language would prohibit exactly what Rep. Oversen said, not 
because of what was in the program but because of who the entity was. 

Rep. Fehr: If they were able to take the money and contract with a different entity that 
does not counsel in favor of abortion, they could perhaps continue? 

Chairman Weisz: That would be my understanding. 

Rep. Damschen: If an organization that taught everything else except counseling for an 
abortion, they could contract with them? 

Chairman Weisz: That would be my understanding. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: DO PASS AS AMEN DED, 1 0  y 3 n 0 absent. 

Bill Carrier: Rep. Si lbernagel 



Amendment to: SB 2368 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

02/1412013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d 

. f f . 
t d d t l  eve s an  tons an  e un er curren aw. 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $0 $0 $0 
Expenditures $0 $0 $0 
Appropriations $0 $0 $0 

2015·2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

$0 $0 
$0 $0 
$0 $0 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties $0 $0 
Cities $0 $0 
School Districts $0 $0 
Townships $0 $0 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

The amendments exclude the fact declarations, criminal & civil penalties for performing abortions, and providing the 
best survival chance for the baby when an abortion is performed. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

With the amendment changes, if this bill becomes law and is legally challenged, and the challenging party prevails, 
the state would likely be o rdered to reimburse that party for attorney's fees and costs which could be approximately 
$60,000 f rom the general fund. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

Not applicable 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

Not applicable 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

Not applicable 



Name: Kathy Roll 

Agency: Office of Attorney General 

Telephone: 701-328-3622 

Date Prepared: 02/1 5/201 3  



Revised 
Bill/Resolution No.: SB 2368 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by legislative Council 

02/04/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d . f f . 

t d d t l  eve s an  10ns an  e un er curren aw. 
2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $0 $0 $0 
Expenditures $0 $0 $0 
Appropriations $0 $0 $0 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

$0 $0 
$0 $0 
$0 $0 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties $0 $0 
Cities $0 $0 
School Districts $0 $0 
Townships $0 $0 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

This bill prohibits abortions, except for medical emergencies, at the probable post fertilization age of 20 or more 
weeks. The physician shall perform the abortion in a manner to provide the best opportunity for the unborn child to 
survive. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Sections 2, 3, 4 and 6 could potentially have a fiscal impact. If this bill is passed and legally challenged and the 
challenging party prevails in a lawsuit, the state would need to reimburse the party for attorney's fees and costs. At 
this time, the Office of Attorney General estimates the general fund cost for this purpose could be $300,000, which 
represents costs and attorney's fees that could be awarded to the challenging party if they prevail, as well as Office 
of Attorney General expenses in defending the bill (deposition costs, travel costs, expert witness fees, etc.). 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

Not applicable 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

Not applicable 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

Not applicable 

Name: Kathy Roll 

Agency: Office of Attorney General 

Telephone: 70 1-328-3622 

Date Prepared: 02/08/20 13 





!;L Contract  or  financial or other  to  
 or entities     or 

 in favor  abortions. 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 14-02.3-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 4-02.3-02. Use of public funds for family plan ning - Use for the 
performance, referral, and encouragement of abortion prohi bited. 

 as   federal  no funds of this state or any agency, 
county, municipality, school  or any other subdivision  or institution under 
the control of the state board of   and no federal funds passing through 
the state treasury or a state agency may be used as� 

.1. As family planning funds by any person or public or private agency which 
performs, refers, or encourages  or 

2. To contract  or  financial or other  to  
 or entities     or  

in favor  abortions. " 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 2 13.0738.03002 



House Human Services 

2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES   

BILL/RESOLUTION NO.   

0 Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Committee 

Action Taken: 0 Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended )z( Adopt Amendment 

0 Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By  i 0 0  Seconded By  
 . v 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
CHAIRMAN WEISZ REP. MOONEY 
VICE-CHAIRMAN HOFSTAD REP.MUSCHA 
REP. ANDERSON REP. OVERSEN 
REP.DAMSCHEN 

REP. FEHR 

REP. KIEFERT 
REP. LANING 

REP. LOOYSEN 
REP. PORTER 
REP. SILBERNAGEL 

Total (Yes) No 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

          
If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:   

 

 {  
 .. _ ' 



  
Roll Call    

House Human Services 

2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL    

BILL/RESOLUTION NO.  

0 Check here for Conference Committee 

Leg islative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken: 0 Do Pass 0 Do Not Pass 0 Amended 

D Rerefer to Appropriations 0 Reconsider 

Committee 

 1Z! Adopt Amendment 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
CHAIRMAN WEISZ REP. MOONEY 
VICE-CHAIRMAN HOFSTAD REP. MUSCHA 

REP. ANDERSON REP. OVERSEN 
REP.DAMSCHEN 

REP. FEHR 

REP. KIEFERT 
REP. LANING 
REP. LOOYSEN 
REP. PORTER 
REP. SILBERNAGEL 

Total      

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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ROLL CALL  I  

BILL/RESOLUTION NO.  o  

0 Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Committee 

Action Taken: � Do Pass 0 Do Not Pass M'Amended 0 Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations 0 Reconsider 

Motion Made By      Seconded By    
 

Representatives  No Representatives Yes  

CHAIRMAN WEISZ   REP. MOONEY  
VICE-CHAIRMAN HOFSTAD   REP. MUSCHA  
REP. ANDERSON   REP. OVERSEN v 
REP.DAMSCHEN  
REP. FEHR  
REP. KIEFERT  
REP. LANING  
REP. LOOYSE!\J  
REP. PORTER  
REP. SILBERNAGEL  

Total (Yes)    
Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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Amendment to: SB 2368 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

03/20/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I · t  

. 
t d  d t l  /eve s and  ions  e un er curren aw. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Appropriations $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties $0 $0 
Cities $0 $0 
School Districts $0 $0 
Townships $0 $0 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

The amendments disallow any state or federal funds to be used to perform an abortion other than the imminent 
death of the mother and disallow state or federal funds to be used to contract with abortion entities performing, 
referring for or counseling for abortions. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

If this bill becomes law and is legally challenged, and the challenging party prevails, the state would likely be 
o rdered to reimburse that party for attorney's fees and costs which could be approximately $60,000 from the general 
fund. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1 A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

Not applicable 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

Not applicable 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

Not applicable 



Name: Kathy Roll 

Agency: Office of Attorney General 

Telephone: 701-328-3622 

Date Prepared: 03/2 1/20 1 3  



Amendment to: SB 2368 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

02/1412013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d 

. f f . 
t d d t l  eve s an  tons an  e un er curren aw. 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $0 $0 $0 
Expenditures $0 $0 $0 
Appropriations $0 $0 $0 

2015·2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

$0 $0 
$0 $0 
$0 $0 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties $0 $0 
Cities $0 $0 
School Districts $0 $0 
Townships $0 $0 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

The amendments exclude the fact declarations, criminal & civil penalties for performing abortions, and providing the 
best survival chance for the baby when an abortion is performed. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

With the amendment changes, if this bill becomes law and is legally challenged, and the challenging party prevails , 
the state would likely be ordered to reimburse that party for attorney's fees and costs which could be approximately 
$60,000 from the general fund. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

Not applicable 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

Not applicable 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

Not applicable 



Name: Kathy Roll 

Agency: Office of Attorney General 

Telephone: 701-328-3622 

Date Prepared: 02/1 5/201 3  



Revised 
Bill/Resolution No.: SB 2368 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by legislative Council 

02/04/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d . f f . 

t d d t l  eve s an  10ns an  e un er curren aw. 
2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $0 $0 $0 
Expenditures $0 $0 $0 
Appropriations $0 $0 $0 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

$0 $0 
$0 $0 
$0 $0 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties $0 $0 
Cities $0 $0 
School Districts $0 $0 
Townships $0 $0 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

This bill prohibits abortions, except for medical emergencies, at the probable post fertilization age of 20 or more 
weeks. The physician shall perform the abortion in a manner to provide the best opportunity for the unborn child to 
survive. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Sections 2, 3, 4 and 6 could potentially have a fiscal impact. If this bill is passed and legally challenged and the 
challenging party prevails in a lawsuit, the state would need to reimburse the party for attorney's fees and costs. At 
this time, the Office of Attorney General estimates the general fund cost for this purpose could be $300,000, which 
represents costs and attorney's fees that could be awarded to the challenging party if they prevail, as well as Office 
of Attorney General expenses in defending the bill (deposition costs, travel costs, expert witness fees, etc.). 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

Not applicable 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

Not applicable 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

Not applicable 

Name: Kathy Roll 

Agency: Office of Attorney General 

Telephone: 70 1-328-3622 

Date Prepared: 02/08/20 13 





Com Conference Committee Report 
April 2, 201 3  8 :37am 

Module 10: s_cfcomrep_58_00 1  

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
SB 2368, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Berry, Lyson, Grabinger and 

Reps. Weisz, Silbernagel, Oversen) recommends that the HOUSE RECEDE from 
the House amendments as printed on SJ pages 861 -862 and place SB 2368 on the 
Seventh order. 

Engrossed SB 2368 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 
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bea r  the r isks of pregn a n cy w h en they know they wi l l  not h ave a ch i ld  at the 

e n d .  

Th e second main  reason is the u nfortu nate situation i n  w h i c h  the patient 

exp e riences ru pture of m e m b ra nes before v iabi l ity. The re is  o n ly a sm a l l  

chance of m a inta i n i n g  t h e  p regn ancy u nti l  viab i l ity a n d  a n  eve n s m a l l e r  chance 

of a h ea lthy ba by. The re is a risk of infection to the mother o r  oth er  

com p l ications that  cou l d  i nte rfere with her  future fe rt i l ity. Th is shou ld  be 

treated as a sponta n e o u s, i n comp lete abortion or misca rriage and labor 

i n d u ced,  but th is  wou l d  be a cr ime if  th is  b i l l  passes. 

Another  con cern is that the idea of feta l pain is p rese nted as  fact when in 

actu a l ity there is a great d e a l  of u nce rtai nty about this in  legit im ate med ical  

l iterature .  The l atest i n fo rmation in  Up- To-Date, a widely used med ica l 

refe re nce that uses the m ost cu rre nt medica l l iterature states - "Pa in  

perce ption req u i res peri p h e ra l  sensory n e u ra l  tissu e  that  se nses painfu l  

sti m u l i ,  cortical  pathways that tra nsmit pa in  sign a l s  to the b ra i n  a n d  

deve l opment o f  h i g h e r  cortica l fu nctions that c a n  inte rpret the pa in  sign a ls .  

The gestati o n a l  age at wh ich n e u ra l  matu ration is sufficiently d eveloped to 

a l low the fetus to pe rceive pa in  has n ot been esta b l ished.  A system atic 

m u ltid isci p l i n a ry review of ava i l a b le evidence has conc luded that fetal pa in  

perce ption i s  u n l i kely before the  th ird tri meste r." 

An a rtic le from 2008 states - "There is no accurate evidence conce rn ing pain 

sensations in  this ea rly p e riod .  Cortical  processes occur  o n ly after 

tha l a m ocortica l con n ections a n d  pathways have been co m p l eted at the 2 6th 

gestati ona l  wee k." 
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Anoth e r  a rticle from 2012 concl u des - "M ost stud ies d isclose the possi b i l ity of 

feta l p a i n  i n  the th i rd trimester of gestation.  The evidence becomes weaker 

before this d ate." 

If  experts can not d ecide when or if fetuses ca n fee l  pai n, h ow c a n  this b i l l  state 

it as a fact? The b i l l  a lso refers to feta l s u rgeons us ing anesthesia  a n d  states it 

is to p revent feta l pain .  I n  fact, a n esthesia is o n ly used in open o p e rations a n d  

i s  used for ute rine relaxation a n d  feta l i mmobi l i zation t o  m a ke s u rgery easie r. 

I t  is wrong to crimina l ize a legit imate m e d ica l p roce d u re. I 'd l ike to end with 

a n other  q u ote from the ACOG position statement - "The intervention of 

legis lative bod ies into med ical  d ecision m a king is inappropriate, i l l  advised, a n d  

d a n ge ro us." 

I u rge a 11do not pass" on this bil l .  

Tha n k  you .  
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study ind icated that 26% of women p regna nt through rape u n derwent abortions. Of the 73% of 

women who carried their p regna ncies to term, 36% placed their infants u p  for a do ption and 

64% rai se d  the i r  ch i ldre n  they conceived through rape (Reardon et  a l  2000). 

I am not h ere today to tel l you that a l l  su rvivors should or even want to h ave abortions; but 

they should have a choice. We believe that since we can not fully u nderstand the pat h  t h at 

b rought them to us we cannot m a ke that very d ifficult d ecision for them. This is a bo ut a l lowing 

a person who has had a l l  d ecision making powers taken away from them as a result of the 

assa ult to m a ke a very i mportant and perso n a l  decision about their health, their fa m ily, and 

their future. 

I u rge a DO NOT PASS on SB 2368. 

Tha n k  You .  

































Amendment No. 

Sixty-third 
Legislative Assembly 
ofNorth Dakota 

Page 1 ,  line 8 insert: 

SENATE BILL NO. 2368 

SECTION 1. PURPOSE. The purpose of this section is to protect the state's compelling 

interest in the unborn human life from the time the unborn child is capable of feeling pain. 

Renumber accordingly 



 

�··· { 
Written Testimony of David A. Prentice, Ph.D. 

Senior Fellow for Life Sciences, Family Research Council 
Adjunct Professor of Molecular Genetics, John Paul II Institute, Catholic University of America 

Founding Member, Do No Harm: The Coalition of Americans for Research Ethics 

Human Services Committee, North Dakota House 
March 201 3  

To the Distinguished Chair, Ranking Member and Honored Members of the Committee. 

I am a cell biologist, currently working for a think tank in Washington, D.C. and as an adjunct professor 
at a local university. Previously I spent 20 years as Professor of Life Sciences at Indiana State 
University and Adjunct Professor of Medical & Molecular Genetics at Indiana University School of 
Medicine. Prior to that I was a faculty member in the Department of Obstetrics, Gynecology and 
Reproductive Sciences, University of Texas Medical School at Houston . .  I have done federally-funded  
laboratory research, lectured, and advised on these subjects extensively, in the U.S.  and internationally. 
I've taught embryology, developmental biology, molecular biology and biochemistry for over 30  years 
to undergraduate and graduate students, as well as medical and imrsing students. 

I am testifying in SUPPORT of SB 2368, the Pain Capable Unborn Child Protection Act. 

Peer-reviewed scientific studies have shown that unborn children as young as20 weeks after fertilization 
can experience pain.1 Dr. Kanwaljeet Anand published a ground breaking review of pain studies in the 
New England Journal of Medicine the 1 987.  Dr. Anand found that the studies showed the pain receptor 
nerves are present throughout the developing human body by 20 weeks gestation ( 1 8  weeks after 
fertilization). He also found that neonates and fetuses could feel pain as early as 20 weeks because the 
cortex, which begins development at 8 weeks, has a full complement of neurons at 20 weeks. His 
review included in utero studies measuring the brain electrical activity (EEG) of unborn babies. 

You may hear testimony that disputes the early development of pain-capable sensation, instead quoting 
a study from 2005 that claims pain sensation does not develop until 29-30 weeks gestation.2 The study, 
which was widely publicized, was published by physicians with ties to the abortion lobby. The 2005 
paper ignored studies demonstrating that premature babies feel pain as early as 20 weeks. 

If the claims of the 2005 paper were true, it would have de legitimized the long-standing practice of 
using pain medication for premature babies born at 23-24 weeks. However, it is routine medical 
procedure to use anesthesia for unborn children as well as premature infants undergoing surgery, 
including additional doses of anesthetics administered directly to the developing hurmin fefus to 
supplement general anesthesia and to provide postoperative relief.3 The doctors who do these prenatal 
and neonatal surgeries understand very well that these young human beings do experience pain, and that 
it is humane medical practice to relieve pain in their patients. 

1 Anand KJS and Hickey PR, Pain and Its Effects in the Human Neonate and Fetus, N Engl j Med 3 17, 
1 32, 1 987 

2 Lee SJ et al., Fetal Pain: A Systematic Multidisciplinary Review ofthe Evidence, JAMA 294, 947, 
2005 
3 See, e.g., Ramirez MV, Anesthesia for fetal surgery, Colombian Journal of Anesthesiology 40, 268, 
2012;Adzick NS et al ., A Randomized Trial of Prenatal versus Postnatal Repair of Myelomeningocele, 
New England J .Med 3 64, 993 , 201 1 ;  Schwarz U and Galinkin JL, Anesthesia for fetal surgery, Semin 
Pediatr Surg 1 2, 1 96, 2003 



In 2006, two independent studies disputed the biased review article, and offered evidence that premature 
babies experience p ain at a higher brain level much earlier than 30  weeks.4 Both studies involved brain 
scans measuring blood flow in the sensory part of the brain. Brain scans were performed to measure 
their response to painful stimuli in the cortex, the higher portion of the brain which processes pain 
sensation in adults. They found that there was a "clear cortical response". The authors concluded that 
"noxious information is transmitted to the preterm infant cortex from 25 weeks, highlighting the 
potential for both higher-level pain processing and pain-induced plasticity in the human brain from a 
very early age." Looking at the results of the studies, Dr. Ruth Grunau, a paediatric psychologist at the 
University of British Columbia, said: 

"We would seem to be holding an extraordinary standard if we didn't infer pain from all those 
measures. "5 

 

A more recent study validates these earlier studies in terms of how pain is usually measured in contrast 
to feeling pain. 6  The study' s authors found that infants showed cortical responses indicating pain, but 
often did not show response to pain as measured by typical pain scoring methods used in the clinical 
setting. This indicates that observers may often not recognize or underestimate infant pain. The authors 
went on to note that: 

 

"While pa.i.nful stimulation generally evokes parallel cortical and behavioral responses in infants, 
pain may be processed at the cortical level without producing detectable behavioral changes." 

. . . 
A new study just published also validates the earlier studies regarding potential for pa.ln processing in 
the human fetal brain. S cientists at Wayne State University used magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) to 
show study the brains of healthy human fetuses within the womb, from 24-3 9 weeks gestation. They 
found that functional connections existed as early as 24 weeks gestation,  and that the healthy human 
fetal brain has functional connections between the brain hemispheres as well as regional connections

· 

within brain hemispheres. 7 

The published scientific evidence indicates that the developing human being (the human fetus) can 
experience pain as early as 20 weeks in the womb. 

I urge a DO PASS on SB 2368 .  

4 Slater R et al., Cortical Pain Response in Human Infants, J Neuroscience 25, 3 662, 2006;  Bartocci M et 
al. ,  Pain Activates Cortical Areas in the Preterm Newborn Brain, Pain 1 22, 109, 2006 
5 Qui J, Does it hurt?, Nature 444, 1 43 ,  2006 
6 Slater R et al., How Well Do Clinical Pain Assessment Tools Reflect Pain in Infants?, PLOS Medicine 
5 , e l 29, 2008 
7 Thomason ME et al., Cross-Hemispheric Functional Connectivity in the Human Fetal Brain, Sci. 
Transl. Med. 5 ,  1 73ra24, 20 1 3  



Sixty-Third Legislative Assembly of North Dakota 
Engrossed Senate Bill NO. 23 68 
Testimony of Anna Higgins, J.D. 

Director of the Center for Human Dignity, Family Research Council 
March 1 3 ,  20 1 3  

Mr. Chairman and honorable members of the committee, thank you for giving me the 

opportunity to testify before you today. My name is Anna Higgins. I am the Director of 

the Center for Human Dignity at the Family Research Council, a Christian public policy 

organization that since 1 983 has promoted and defended human life, religious liberty, and 

family values in the United States. We represent more than 1 .5 million people from 

Evangelical, Catholic, and other Christian denominations around the country. I speak 

today as a representative of Americans who support the sanctity of all human life, no 

matter the stage of development. Fundamentally, we believe that life begins at conception 

and that this life is worthy of respect and equality under the law. 

Fetal Pain in General: 

The introduction of various forms of Unborn Fetal Pain Bills on both federal and state 

levels demonstrates the fact that the issue of fetal pain has become a major concern. Just 

as modern science has given us a glimpse into the womb; it has also revealed the fact that 

an unborn child can feel pain. The most common forms of abortion are now thought to 

cause excruciating pain for the unborn child and this pain can be felt as early as thirteen 

and a half weeks, although the consensus is that the unborn child can feel pain at least by 

20 weeks. 



Fetal Development up to week 20: 

About six days after fertilization, the embryo is implanted into the uterus and at about 22 

days, blood is circulating and heartbeat can be detected on ultrasound. At six weeks after 

conception, a baby has electrical brain activity and eyes, eyelids, nose, mouth, and tongue 

are formed and at six to seven weeks electrical brain activity can be detected. By eight 

weeks, the baby, now called a fetus, has all the organs found in any newborn infant. By 

ten weeks the child can grasp, stretch and kick. 1 At twelve weeks the child moves in 

response to external stimuli and has eye-brows and hair.2 At fourteen weeks babies show 

a variety of facial expressions like smiles and frowns, "often in response to external 

stimuli."3 By twenty weeks the baby's sense are heightened and neurol ogical connections 

are increasingly complex; his hearing becomes very clear and he takes an interest in 

sounds outside the womb.4 

Unborn Child Feels Pain: 

Pain is "a perceptive response to potential or actual tissue damage.5 "That a fetus can feel 

pain should not be a difficult concept to comprehend. Most of us have had the 

opportunity to hold an hifant in our arms and see its response to touch. We have seen and 

heard a very young child's obj ection to the irritation of diaper rash, to pangs of hunger, 

and to the careless poke of a sibling. We know the response of the newborn to the 

1 Cathy Cleaver Ruse, Esq. and Rob Schwarzwalder, The Best Pro-Life Arguments for Secular Audiences, 
Family Research Council http://www.frc.org/brochure/the-best-pro-life-arguments-for�secular-audiences: 
7-8, and Ashley Mon-ow Fragoso, Fetal Pain, Can Unborn Children Feel Pain in the Womb? Family 
Research Council (20 1 0) http ://downloads.frc.org/EF/EF1 OH06.pdf : 1 -3 .  
2 Ashley Mon-ow Fragoso, Fetal Pain, Can Unborn Children Feel Pain in the Womb? Family Research 
Council (20 1  0) http://downloads.frc.org/EF/EFl OH06.pdf : p 2 
3 Id. 
4 Id at 3 .  
5 Id. 
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doctor's  slap just seconds after birth. Laymen and physicians alike interpret this response 

to be precisely what it is - a response to the sensation of pain. The baby crying just 

moments after birth surely had the same capacity to feel pain in the womb just a few 

moments prior to birth. "6 

Dr. Kanwaljeet S .  Anand of the University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences and the 

Pain Neurobiology Laboratory at Arkansas Children's  Hospital Research Institute, 

testified that children of 20 weeks gestation (or even earlier) possess the ability to feel 

pain "and the pain perceived by a fetus is possibly more intense than that perceived by 

term newborns or older children."7 

Between seven and twelve weeks gestation the unborn child becomes sensitive to 

stimulation.8 The thalamus and cortex have begun to develop, but ne;ve pathways have 

not yet connected the cortex with the lower part of the brain.9 The brain stem is active at 

this point in development. At the beginning of the second trimester sensory receptors 

cover the body of the baby and the hippocampus becomes functional .1 0 At this point, 

babies respond to invasive procedures. "At 23 weeks, the nerves transport pain signals to 

the cortex are connected to the rest of the brain, and signals received through the 

thalamus can be processed in the cortex, allowing for a form of conscious perception . . .  " 1  1 

6 Vincent J. Collins, M.D., Steven R. Zielinski, M.D., Thomas J. Marzen, Esq., "Fetal Pain and Abortion: 
The Medical Evidence," AMERICANS UNITED FOR LIFE, Legal Defense Fund Law and Medicine 
Series: 1 2) 
7 Ibid at 4 .  
8 Ashley Morrow Fragoso, Fetal Pain, Can Unborn Children Feel Pain in the Womb ?  Family Research 
Council (20 1 0) http://downloads.frc.org/EF/EFl OH06.pdf : 6 .  
9 Ibid. 
10 Ibid at 6-7. 
11 Ibid at 7 .  
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In the article, "Fetal Pain and Abortion: The Medical Evidence," Vincent J. Collins, 

M.D.,  Steven R. Zielinski, M.D.,  and Thomas J. Marzen, Esq. note, "The medical 

evidence plainly points to the existence of pain sensation in the human fetus, at least from 

the onset of the second trimester of pregnancy, and perhaps during the last weeks the first 

trimester. "12 

Abortion Methods and Pain: 

"Induced abortion will cause pain to a fetus with a functioning nervous system if the 

method-used stimulates the pain receptors, excites the neural pathways, and the impulse 

reaches the thalamus." 13 Dilatation and evacuation (D&E), abortion, abortion by saline 

amnia-infusion, and prostaglandin abortions are capable of stimulating pain receptors and 

exciting neural pathways. 14 Because of the size of the fetus and the solid bone structure, 

D&E abortions are performed after 1 2  weeks gestation. "D&E involves the progressive 

dismemberment of the fetus prior to extraction in order to facilitate removal of the fetal 

parts from the uterus. The slicing and crushing involved in dismemberment of the fetus in 

D&E abortions would obviously excite pain receptors and stimulate the neural 

pathways . . .  " 

Saline amnia-infusion abortions are performed after the 141h week and involve the 

removal of amniotic fluid, which is replaced with highly concentrated saline. Over a 

12 Vincent J. Collins, M.D., Steven R. Zielinski, M.D., Thomas J. Marzen, Esq., "Fetal Pain and Abortion: 
The Medical Evidence," AMERICANS UNITED FOR LIFE, Legal Defense Fund Law and Medicine 
Series: 1 2) 
13 Id. at 1 1  
14 Id. 
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period of approximately 48  hours the saline burns off the skin of the fetus as well as the 

mouth and esophagus since the baby inevitably swallows the saline. 1 5  "By damaging the 

surface of the fetus in this fashion, saline would excite pain receptors and stimulate the 

neural pathways of a functioning central nervous system during the course of the abortion 

and until the fetus dies. It is well-known that the fetus reacts with aversive responses 

when saline is introduced into amniotic fluid. The aborting mother can feel her baby 

thrashing in the uterus during the approximately two hours it usually takes for the saline 

solution to kill the fetus." 16 Finally, "The method of abortion involving the introduction 

of prostaglandin into the mother's system may bring about death of the fetus by 

constricting the circulation of the blood and/or impairing the heart function. Pain 

analogous to that of a person experiencing a heart attack can be assumed."17 

"We cannot measure the sum agony of these human beings. We can only know that it 

was real, hope that it was mercifully brief, and grieve because the ideology that so 

arrogantly asserts abortion as a "right" has subverted simple human compassion to such a 

degree that these young human beings continue to die with less concern for their pain that 

expressed for experimental rats."18  

There have been about 5 5  million legal abortions performed in the U.S. since 1 973, many 

on pain-capable children. It is unimaginable that we would dismiss the possibility that 

these unborn children feel pain during abortion. 

IS Id. 
16 Id. 
17 Id. 
18 Id at 1 2 .  
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Additionally, approximately 92% of abortions are done for purely elective reasons - on 

healthy women and healthy children. Only 4% are performed for reasons of physical 

health of the mother and 3 %  for the health of the baby. About 0.5% of abortions are 

performed for reasons of rape or incest, another 0 .5% in order to hide a pregnancy, and 

1 %  due to pressure from family members. 19 

Pain Capable Acts and Undue Burden: 

The Casey Court affirmed a woman's right to choose abortion prior to viability; however, 

the Court ruled that the trimester framework in Roe misconceived the interest of the 

woman. The Court noted that the right to choose an abortion prior to viability is not a 

right to be completely insulated from others in her choice, thus, a state has a substantial 

interest in protecting potential life ofthe fetus and the health ofthe mother from the 

outset of pregnancy (all nine months). The Court then set forth a new standard for state 

regulation called the undue burden test. 

Tlus test states that a regulation on abortion prior to viability must not have the purpose 

or effect of placing a substantial obstacle in the path of a woman seeking an abortion of a 

nonviable fetus. Under this standard the Court has upheld myriad of state regulations 

such as informed consent, 24 hour waiting periods, parental notification, abortion record 

collection, and clinic regulations. 

19 Lawrence B. Finer, "Reasons U.S .  Women Have Abortions: Quantitative and Qualitative Perspectives, 
Perspectives on Sexual Health 37,  no. 5 (2005): 1 1 3 - 1 4 .  
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Over 90% of abortions are performed before 20 weeks gestation; thus, it is a very light 

burden indeed to require that a woman make a decision about abortion prior to 20 weeks. 

20 

Based on the evidence, if the prohibition of abortion after 20 weeks based on this 

evidence presents an undue burden, what then is not an undue burden? This is a 

commonsense measure that has wide, bipartisan support. A recent Marist poll showed 

that 83% of people favor significant abortion restrictions.21 Additionally, it is the 

responsibility of the State to ensure that all the health and lives of women and children 

are protected from the outset of pregnancy. This bill would not unduly burden a woman 

in choosing an abortion and would at the same time protect the unborn child from 

excruciating and unnecessary pain. 

20 "Abortion Surveillance- United States, 2009," Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, "In 2009, 
most (64.0%) abortions were performed at ::;8 weeks' gestation, and 9 1 .7% were performed at :S 1 3  weeks' 
gestation. Few abortions (7.0%) were performed at 14-20 weeks ' gestation, and even fewer ( 1 .3%) were 
performed at 2:2 1 weeks ' gestation. From 2000 to 2009, the percentage of all abortions performed at :S8 
weeks' gestation increased 1 2%, whereas the percentage performed at > 1 3  weeks' decreased 12%. 
Moreover, among abortions performed at :Sl3 weeks ' gestation, the distribution shifted toward earlier 
gestational ages, with the percentage of these abortions performed at :S6 weeks' gestation increasing 47%." 
21 Marist Poll, "Abortion in America," December 20 12 .  
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Beverly LaHaye 
Chainnan 

M a rc� 13, 2013 

M r. Chairman a n d  Members of the Committee, my n a m e  is J a n ne Myrdal ,  and I a m  the State Director 

for Concerned Women for America (CWA) of North Da kota . CWA is the largest public pol icy women's 

o rganizatio n  in  the nation .  We a re here today on behalf of our North Dakota m e mbers in  s upport of 

SB2368. 

The fact that the human fetus fee ls  pain introduces a whole new element and l evel to the moral 

discourse a nd p ub l ic pol icy debate on a bortion.  As clearly heard by expert testimony h ere today, it is a 

proven scientific fact that the u n bo rn chi ld  feels physical  pai n  a nd suffers pain d u ri ng a n  a b o rtion 

proce d u re .  We do not see the need to repeat or copy a ny of the facts that oth e r  testim o ny wil l  present 

h e re, but a l low us to state that it is indeed a tragic fact that it has taken science and society 40 long a n d  

sad years t o  catch up t o  what we a l l  have known from t h e  begin ning o f  this d e b ate, namely that the 

u nborn ch i ld  is i ndeed a h uman being ca pable of feel ing excruciating pain duri n g  an  abortio n .  

We once again h ave a choice set before us; w e  must choose to accept the proof and correct t h e  i njustice 

being perpetrated upon u nborn chi ldre n  by passing this legislation.  

CWA of N o rth D akota urge a "do pass" o n  SB2368 giving the u n born chi ld the p rotectio n  they a re owed 

rega rd l ess of their gestational age. 

C O N C E R N E D  WO M E N F O R  A M E R I C A 
O F  N O RT H  D A K O TA 

PO Box 213, Park River, ND j8270 
Phone: (701) 331 -0946 E-mail: director@northdakota.cwfa.org 



Represellfing the Diocese of Fargo 
and the Diocese of Bismarck 

Christopher T. Dodson 
Executive Director and 
General Counsel 

To: House Human Services Committee 
Subject: SB 2368 Abortion After Ability to Feel Pain 
Date: March 1 3 , 20 1 3  

The North Dakota Catholic Conference supports Senate Bill 2368.  

Senate Bill 2368 reflects a basic truth: "The respect given to an individual 

human person must always be first and must govern every law and action so 

that the person's life and dignity is always and everywhere protected and 

defended." (Bishop David D. Kagan, October 1 9, 20 12.)  

Senate Bill 2368 would prohibit only abortions where after twenty weeks -- the 

time we know the unborn child can feel pain. Currently, the US Supreme Court 

only allows states to protect unborn life after the point of viability, which is 

when an unborn child can survive outside the womb. The Supreme Court chose 

viability because it understood viability to be a significant marker of human 

development. Close reflection, however, reveals that viability is not really a 

measure of human development. It is only a measure of the medical technology 

available to a newborn, and as technology improves, viability changes. 

Viability as a marker is inherently suspect and unjust because it is dependent 

upon time, place, and circumstance. 

The ability to feel pain, however, is a marker that actually reflects the 

development of the unborn child. It is wrong that the courts will only allow 

states to protect some unborn children and not all of them. However, if the 

courts insist on only allowing protections for unborn children that are developed 

to a certain extent, the ability to feel pain provides a better basis than viability. 

We urge Do Pass recommendation on Senate Bill 2368. 

1 03 S .  3rd St. ,  Suite I 0 • B ismarck, ND 58501  

(70 1 )  223-25 1 9  • 1 -888-4 1 9- 1 237 • FAX # (70 1 )  223-6075 

http://ndcatholic.org • ndcatholic @blinet.net 



Hi, my name is Hannah Hersch. I come here this morning to talk to you on a subject 

that I feel very strongly about, human life. As a young Catholic, I feel that it is my duty to 

share my beliefs before you make a decision that affects women, their future children, and 

the state of North Dakota. 

Not only do we, as a state, have to give rights to the woman, but also the baby. Every 

human has the right to life and an innocent child in the womb is no exception to that right. 

If a mother cannot care for her baby she has the choice and alternative to give her child up 

for adoption. Many couples are unable to have children and would be blessed to take in that 

child. Life is a gift not a choice. Abortion eliminates that God giving gift and in turn affects 

not only the unborn child, but also the mother. 

Human life begins at conception and ends at natural death. The baby inside the 

mother's womb is not just a blob of tissues; it is in fact a human life. The baby's heart 

begins to beat by the time the mother even realizes she may be pregnant. The brain, spinal 

cord, heart, and other organs begin to form around week five of pregnancy. During the sixth 

week, the baby's facial features begin to appear and small buds soon become arms and legs. 

Surgical abortions start as early as seven weeks, by that time the child's head becomes 

developed and eye lenses begin to form. Most abortions are p erformed between the 7-12 

week periods of pregnancy. At this time the 
,
baby's arms and legs grow longer, bones 

develop, red blood cells begin to form and fingernails and toes develop. A baby's face is 

recognizably human at the start of 12 weeks. As months progress the child grows rapidly 

and begins to move his or her extremities, which can be detected in ultrasounds. Also the 

baby can recognize the mother's voice and is able to detect light. During the third trimester 



the bones are fully developed, the baby starts to practice breathing on his or her own, and 

starts to absorb the vitamins and minerals needed. So what about the child's rights? The 

innocent baby cannot defend itself from an abortion. The baby will never get a chance to 

experience life. The right to life is in our constitution. We must respect the dignity and 

importance of human life and recognize that abortion is an injustice to our state and our 

country. Throughout history, we have overcome slavery and the holocaust that disregarded 

the importance of life and now it is our chance to overcome the evil act of abortion. We 

must come together and vote for the right to all human life. 



I am Pastor John Boustead 

I support Senate Bill 2303, 2305,  also:  4009 

Today we carry convictions, either pro-life or pro-choice. But this topic of life 
at conception should not be lost in the scope of humanistic free thinking. 

The unbridled human mind left to wander without the basis of Godly moral 
principals often leads man to destruction. Taking the life of a pre born baby is 
an example of this. 

Mr. Chairman the debate on abortion is whether human life is endowed or, is 
it achieved. I submit with confidence all life including the pre born, is 
endowed by God and is a sacred gift. The Bible is clear about this. 

I leave only two quick verse and I will end: 

P sa l m  1 39 :  1 3-1 6, ( N KJV) 

"For You formed my i nward parts;· You covered me in my mother's  womb .  I 
wil l  praise You ,  for I a m  fea rful l y  a n d  wonderfu l ly  made; marvelous a re 
You r  works and that my soul  knows wel l .  M y  frame was n ot h idden from 
You ,  when I was made i n  secret, a n d  s ki l lful ly wrought i n  the l owest parts of 
the earth.  You r  eyes saw my s ubstance,  being yet u nformed , and i n  You r  
book they a l l  were written ,  the d ays fas hioned for me, when a s  yet there 
were none of them" . 

Jeremiah 1 :4-5 

I knew you even before you were conceived . 
J eremiah 1 : 4- 5 
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Chair Weisz a n d  Members of the Committee: 

My name is Janelle Moos. I am speaki ng this morning on behalf of CAWS North Dakota i n  

opposition t o  SB 2368. 

Our Coa lition is  a membership based organization that consists of 21 1ocal d o mestic viol e n ce 

a n d  rape crisis centers located thro ughout the state that p rovide services to d omestic vio l en ce, 

sexual  assault, a n d  sta l king victims in a l l  53 cou nties and the reservations in N o rth D a kota. Last 

year a lone, these centers p rovided services to nearly 900 victims of sexua l  assault. 

Although o u r  Coal ition does not h ave a policy position on abortion, we a re u n ited in o u r  

con cern for victims o f  sexua l  assau lt and incest. S B  2368, from o u r  perspective, wou l d  b a n  

access t o  abortion for rape a n d  i ncest victims. W e  a ren't h ere today t o  d eb ate t h e  iss u e  of 

abortion itself; so we wil l  l imit our testimony to the specific exclusion of these exemptions for 

rape a n d  i ncest survivors in SB 2368. 

According to the N ational  Victim Center and N ation a l  Crime Victims Research a n d  Treatme nt 

Center's study entitled Rape in America: A Report to the N ation (1992} "pregnancy from rape 

occurs with 11Significant frequency" . Of the estimated 12% of a d u lt women i n  the United States 

that have experienced at least one rape in their l ifetime, 4.7% of these rapes resu lted i n  

p regnancy. Another stu dy estimated that 25,000 pregnancies fol lowing t h e  ra pe o f  a d u lt 

women occur a nn ual ly (Stewart & Trussel l  2000}. It's d ifficult to determine with certainty the 

o utcome of the approxi m ate 25,000 rape-related p regnancies that occur i n  the US, b ut one 
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stu dy indicated that 26% of women p regnant through ra pe underwent a bo rtions. Of the 73% of 

women who carried their pregnan cies to term, 36% placed their infants u p  for adoption a nd 

64% raised their  chi ldren they conceived th rough ra pe ( Rea rdon et a l  2000}. 

I a m  not here today to tel l  you that a l l  su rvivors should  or even want to h ave abortions; b ut 

they shou ld h ave a choice. We believe that since we can not fu l ly understand the pat h  that 

b rought them to us we cannot make that very difficu lt decision for them. This is a bout a l l owing 

a p e rson who has had al l  d ecision making powers taken away from them as a result of t h e  

assau lt t o  m a ke a very important a n d  persona l  decision about their health, t h e i r  fam ily, and 

their  futu re. 

I u rge a DO N OT PASS on SB 2368. 

Tha n k  You .  
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 in favor of    4009 

Mr. Chairman and honorable members of the committee: 

My name is Maria Wanchic and I've lived here in the Bismarck/Mandan area my whole life. I am 
honored to be here today testifying in support of Senate Bill 2303, 2305, 2368 and 4009. My testimony 
will last about 1 0  minutes. 

I'd like to play a few short audio clips from the Roe vs Wade oral arguments. Jtls not my intention to 
construe the words of anyone in these clips but only to call attention to the number of times the 
question of the unborn as persons comes up. (you can listen to the entire audio clip at  

(audio clip, tracks 1-7) {41 
Throughout the one hour of Roe vs. Wade oral arguments the question of personhood for the unborn is 
discussed over and over again. As Justice Potter Stewart says answering that question is "critical to this 
case"". However, after the much anticipated ruling it was revealed that the Supreme Court would be 
silent on this critical question. In the final analysis, the Supreme Court contradicted itself, flipped a 
coin on the question of life and chose to make freedom of choice the law of the land completely wiping 
off the board decades of various state anti-abortion laws. (11) 
Justices White and Rehnquist could not find a constitutional basis to allow for abortion on demand. 
Justice White wrote in his dissenting opinion: 

"!find nothing in the language or history of the Constitution to support the Court's judgment. The 
Court simply fashions and announces a new constitutional right for pregnant women and, with 
scarcely any reason or authority for its action, invests that right with sufficient substance to 
override most existing state abortion statutes. " f5J 

In the Supreme Court's view state laws against abortion infringed upon the l 41lt amendment right to 
personal liberty. The court had twisted the concept of personal liberty to mean private choices. But 
private choices are limited when they adversely affect other people or even the individual person. This 
would be the case with abortion because it's a decision to end the life of another person. States restrict 
personal liberty all the time in the cases of suicide, drug use, smoking, underage drinking, seat belts, 
and speed limits. Personal liberty is trumped by the protection of human life. (se note A) 
Later on il his career, Justice White made repeated atempts to overe Roe vs Wade. In describmg the 
right to abortion on demand he wrote, 

"In so denominating that liberty, the Court engages not in constitutional interpretation, but in the 
unrestrained impositin of its own extrac.onstituti.onal value preferences. " [6] 



In other words, the Supreme Court fashioned this new so caled right based on a the whim ofthe age and 
personal preference, not on the constitution or even on any prior court cases. {7) 

The Ninth Amendment 
Another argument for abortion on demand used the 9th amendment by stating that abortion was an 
unenumerated right (or a right not specifically spelled out in the constitution) retained by the American 
people. Under the meaning of the ninth amendment the state laws had already set the precedence that 
abortion was NOT a right retained by the American people. When the civil war ended in 1 865, 26 out 
of 36 states had already band abortion. {8J By the year 1900 every state had anti-abortion laws in 
place. {91 The people had spoken. The 1973 ruling nullified the strict anti-abortion laws of 20 states 
who defended the unborn for over a century. flOJ 
During the mid 1 800's as medical research discovered that life begins at conception rather than at 
quickening (which is when the mother first feels the fetus move), it became a firm resolution in the 
minds of medical professionals that unborn life must be preserved and defended IUJ The American 
Medical Association in a declaratory statement presented to Congress in 1857 used strong language 
against the increasing practice of abortion on demand. I quote: 

" . . .  this body, representing, as it does, the physicians of the land, publicly express its abhorrence of the 
unnatural and now rapidly increasing crime of abortion; that it avow its true nature, as no simple 

offence against public morality and decency, no mere misdemeanor. . .  '' (121 

The Declaration of Independence 
The Declaration of Independence, the foundation of the constitution, asserts that we are created equal, 
not born equal and nothing has to be done or accomplished to attain the right to life. Simply to be in 
existence is enough. By condoning abortion on demand, the Supreme Court condoned the civil 
right (or privileged right guaranteed by a government) to take a human right (or God-given right 
bestowed by the Creator) away from those who can not speak for themselves. The right to be 
born is a human right. 

The 14th Amendment 
The 14th amendment elaborates on the declaration's basis of human rights for persons. Mrs. 
Weddington, the attorney who argued the case against Texas in Roe vs. Wade admitted that if a fetus 
was a person with constitutional rights then she would have a very difficult case. She reasoned that 
fetus' have no protection under the 141h amendment because they are not yet born as citizens of the 
United States. 

This reasoning assumes that because a person does not become a citizen until after birth that they have 
no rights guaranteed by the Constitution. However the framers of our constitution used both the words, 
citizen and person in the 14th amendment to describe who's life spec.ifically is protected . You do not 
need to be a citizen to have your right to life protected. (se note B) Legal and even illegal immigrants to 
the US still have the same basic protection under the constitution. [131 If you are a person (born or 
unborn) and if you are within the borders of the US then your right to life specifically is protected by 
the 14th amendment. 



An Appeal to Objective, (Self-evident) Truths 
Over the last 20 years I have become grateful to those individuals who were pro-choice who were calm 
and respectful enough to have good dialogues. And what I've learned from those conversations is this: 
although there are many out there who believe abortion to be a right, when it comes down to it, the vast 
majority believe abortion to be a necessary wrong-doing or a necessary eviL I have heard over and 
over again a laundry list of social issues that make abortion on demand necessary in their eyes. 

But this is my point: death should never ever be the answer to any social problem. Abortion on demand 
is not the way to deal with with unwanted human beings. When a society sees death as a solution to any 
issue then that society has lost it's wisdom and when a society raises death on a pedestal as a 
constitutional right, under the guise of personal liberty, indeed it has lost it's hope and when a pe<Ople 
are pitted against their own future generation they are truly under some form of slavery. 

George Washington said, liberty has an ordering to it. {14J We se this in the Declaration of 
Independence and the Constitution. Life is the first right mentioned, followed by liberty. Mr. 
Chairman, Committee Members, and fellow citizens, true freedom, true liberty, begins inside the heart 
of a person who chooses responsible citizenship which keeps the common good in mind and does not 
raise individual free will up as the highest moral good. Many in our current culture think free will is 
equal to freedom. Free \vill is only a tool that can be used for good and evil. A very very powerful tool 
that carries with it an awesome responsibility to act in truth and self-sacrifice. I think most North 
Dakota's understand this concept 

Through these pro-life bills we have a momentous opportunity to raise the dignity of the unborn to 
persons in North Dakota. We can become the first state in the nation to reclaim our true pro-life 
heritage. Although these bills are big step forward to ending abortion we also need to (both publicly 
and privately) always encourage an environment that supports family, community and personal 
responsibility. 

Lastly I'd like to make an appeal to the same God that our founders constantly referred to. John Adams 
said, 

"l'Ou have rights antecedent to all earthly governments; rights that cannot be repealed or restrained by 
human laws; rights derived from the Great Legislator of the Universe. " 

The right to life is a human right which surpasses al jurisdictions and national boundaries. It is given 
by God himself It is our very soul, bequeathed by the Creator, that raises the dignity of life to that of 
God himself It is this sacred gift which warrants the right to live and experience life on earth. It is a 
God-given right for each and every human being to be born into this world and to live out their own 
unique story within it. 

I ask you once again to vote a DO PASS on these historic bills. Thank you for your time and attention. 

Notes 
A. In the case of assisted suicide personal liberty has been given a higher status then protecting life. Only three states allow 
assisted suicide: Washington, Oregon, Montana I also believe this to be unconstitutional. 

B. The rights protected by the constitution offoreign nationals have been abused in my opinion since the attacks of9/11 .  In 
the pre-9/11 days immigrants were given much more freedom then they do now. 
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1 4-02.3-02 . Use of public funds for family planning - Use for the 
performance, referral ,  and encouragement of abortion prohibited. 

 as   federal  no funds of this state or any agency, 
county, m unicipality, school   any other subdivision  or institution under 
the control of the state board of   and no federal funds passing throug h  
the state treasury o r  a state agency may be used as� 

.1. As family planning funds by any person or public or private agency which 
performs, refers , or encourages  or 

2 .  To contract  or  financial or other  to  
 or entities     or  

in favor  abortions. "  

Renumber accordingly 
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